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Independent auditor’s report
o7 IR

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

B REFARBRARA A 2 E5RR
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(FEBIERBRILHFRAR)

Opinion

We have audited the separate financial statements of
Bank of China Group Investment Limited (the
“Company”) set out on pages 8 to 100, which
comprise the separate statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the separate statement
of profit or loss, the scparate statement of
comprehensive income, the separate statement of
changes in equity and the separate statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the separate financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2019, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

BILEIHRE (45

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

HPREFRAFTRARLERR
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(FHBIEM B ARA )

Key aundit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters, For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, nrovide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying financial
statements,
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

AL TR E (45

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

HRRDBHARATLAERR
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(TR B MERA )

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial
statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

ML RS (55)

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

BT RKEARAFRARLERR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(FHEEEM LA RA )

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the N MERERHHRIE (&)

financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we 7E{RIE (EHH N #TE RS, B
exercise professional judgement and maintain {{JiE TEWHE, BT EH5LERESE. B0

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

A member firm of Emst & Yourgy Global Limited
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

BOLE TR E (&)
To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

FHREARFARAR LRI
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(THEBEMBRLAARAR)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors” use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

A member firm of Emst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

B H TR S (40

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited
BPRSKARBHTRATLER R

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(FEEEMBOLMFRA =)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is KWONG, Chun Kit.

K

L
Certified Public AceShntants $1)
Hong Kong ¥

16 APR 2020
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREEREFRAT

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FlEx
Year ended 31 December 2019

BE_R-AE+-A=1+—HILER

REVENUE

Other gain/(loss)

Operating expenses and other costs
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax (expense)/credit

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

A
Hpbieads (F%)

B2 R A A
Wt 45 B H

BLRIA
Ffgf (3R Ak%

e A

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 8

2019

Notes HK$'%00
EoDy 3 EHRTRT
5 4,352,522

5 8,650
4,361,172

( 349,181)

7 { 1,033,566)
6 2,978,425

8 (94495
2,883,930

2018
HK$'000
i
4,090,626

( 1,131,172)
2,959,454

( 369,018)
(610,671}

1,979,765

93,701

2,073,466

FERREE A RAT



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT L IEED

RS BT LA ,
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCO ME

SAWER
Year ended 31 December 2019

BE_R—NWF+-A=1+—HIL¥EE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$000
b3 WhHFIT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR AR R AR 42 A 2 4 2,883,930 2,073,466

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENTLIMITED 9 PR AREARAR



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT L

FEREHARETRAT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Wi SRR
31 December 2019

—#—hFEt=A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Loans to and receivables from
subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to and receivabies from
subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits, accounts and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals

Tax payable

Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Bonds issued

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 10

2019 2018
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000
bz 22 BHTR WHTR
k(2 30} g
B E # e 10 46,417 7,073
HAFAT 11 69,822,071 61,056,512
REBKELLESE S 12 1,645,744 1,614,947
LA st i E H AR it
ANB IS S phig 13 21,021,056 22,982,070
BINF A B PR R R 11 4,795,813 5,398,319
JeFshER it 97.331,101 91,058,921
FahF=
Bl F A B Pk R IR 11 2,179,731 1,684,266
R R HARN o, 4
FoTiATER IR 14 44,509 51,162
W& RS 15 5,205,211 2,835,307
TRanE = ANt 7,429,451 4,570,735
JoN i 104,760,552 95,629,656
Fish
b R s 3 T R TR 20 A 16 498,585 471,642
FIAcH & 2,394 2,302
iSRRI R H i 17 22,223,109 23,047,855
I BT - et} 11 17,418,780 18,274,206
RAThiE 18 1,666,445 x
mEh AR T 41,809,313 41,796,005
Bimsl fu { 34,379,362) { 37,225,270)
BB SR A fEm 62,951,239 53,833,651
continued/-+-&E/+
PREFHRFHRAT



HERMANHERAT fﬁ?
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (co ﬁued} %
Wi 48R3 (2) é‘ Bp s
31 December 2019 L
—2—hfFt+HA=+—H

Notes

b i3
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (5 F it
Amounts due fo subsidiaries REfF-F 4 J] ik 11
Other payables and accruals KA AR B mR YA 16
Interest-bearirig bank and other
berrowings T B AR A R i 17
Bonds issued Biris 18
Deferred tax labilities BEFRBEAN 19
Total non-carrent liabilities b
Total liabilities Bk
Net assets W
EQUITY BRERR
Share capital 2 S 20
Retained profits BN
Total equity BHERSAH

X

Gong Jianzhong EE
Director E%

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

2019 2018
HKS'000 HK$'000
3ol BT
4,375,963

11,820

5,563,648 :
3,336,426 5,100,142
104,846 96,158
13,392,703 5,196,300
55,202,016 46,992,305
49,558,536 48,637,351
34,051,740 34,051,740
15,506,796 14,585,611
49,558,536 48,637,351

Agn

Li Changlin ZF 4k
Direstor FETX

u.

PEMEREY AR

o o e e



RENBEFHR
Year ended 31 December 2019

BE—® N E+—A=t—HiER

Balance at 1 January 2018 201848 1 § 1 H&H

Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income
for the year

AR B AR
KA

Interim 2018 dividend EE 2018 FETHERE

20184E 12 A 31 0
20194E 1 B 1 A&

Balance at 31 December
2018 and 1 January 2019

Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income
for the year

BRI S AR A
HAR

Interim 2019 dividend VR 2019 EFE PRI A

Balance at 31 December

2019 20194 12 A 31 H4&H

Note
HE

9

9

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

12

Share capital Retained profits Total
BE  ROEAE &it
HKS3'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
EHFT BHTR EHTI0
34,051,740 13,639,428 47,691,168
- 2,073,466 2,073,466
( 1,127,283) ( 1,127,283)
34,051,740 14,585,611 48,637,351
2,883,930 2,883,930
_— ( 1,962,745) ( 1,962,745)
34,051,740 15,506,796 49,558,536
R AR R AT



PREFSRARALT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HeRER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments:

Finance costs

Interest income

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of an associate

Gain on disposal of financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Net fair value losses on financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss

Depreciation

Management fee income from joint
ventures

Exchange difference on bond issued

Reversal of impairment of amounts due
from a joint venture

Impairment of accounts and other
receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits,
accounts and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and
accruals

Cash used in operations
Withholding tax paid

Interest paid

Interest element on lease liabilities

Net cash flows used in operating activities

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 13

SERIFENRE R
B

W
MERH
BN
[:2=LiON

Ak B e R 2R

AL B BE I I BRI 2

AB LA A E T B R ALY
Hdm A S B P i 2

HE T A E U

BLA S g vt B H Rl A iR
SRR A S TR

#iH

FEMEHIA
RATEF MR

B2 B bl AR R {54 B
PR B Fo A SR IR

FRZW R T2 3
RERTRIR Q) B

SEENLHNNSRE
R a s

AT RIFE

BE AT R B RS
EERIA SR B0

2019 2018
HKS'000 HKS$'000
T BTTT
2,978,425 1,979,765
1,033,566 610,671
( 333987  (  183,592)
( 4018477)  { 3906976)
( 11) ( 8)

- 292573)
(60994 (  22.904)
( 165125 {  1990M)

271,999 1,506,842

36,686 2,750
( 8 48)
( 105239) .
(21870 -

102 .
( 384973)  (  325980)

6,551 50,997

1,961 ( 18457)
376461)  ( 293.440)
85,715) (115,347
9B4,562)  (  434361)
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PREFABEFIRAT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (contint

HE&EREE (&)
Year ended 31 December 2019

BE_F—AF+A=T—HIL4EH

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Dividends received

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries

Proceed from disposal of an associate

Decrease in loans to and receivables from
snbsidiaries

Increase in amounts due from subsidiaries

Acquisition of a joint venture

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
subsidiaries

Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a
Jjoint venture

Purchases of financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Proceed from disposal of financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss

Net cash flows/(used in) from investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from loans and borrowings

Repayment of loans and borrowings

Proceeds from bonds issued

Dividend paid

Principal portion of lease payments

Net cash flows from financing activitics

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank

Short-term time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months when
acquired
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2019 2018
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489 ( 4,389)

12 -
227,152 34,200

i 412,486
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25130 ( 7,104)

102) (437,140
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FRREARRTRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W ERRER
31 December 2019

2009412 F 31 H

GENERAL INFORMATION AND
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

1.

Bank of China Group Investment Limited (the
"Company") is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 23/F, Bank of China Tower,
1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

The directors consider that the Company’s
immediate holding company is Bank of China
Limited ("BOC"). The Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group") are subject to the control of the State
Council of The People’s Republic of China ("PRC")
Government through China Investment Corporation
("CIC"), its wholly-owned subsidiary, Central
Huijin Investment Ltd. ("Central Huijin"), and BOC
in which Central Huijin has controlling equity
interests. The Company’s principal activity is
investment holding. The principal activities and
other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries, material joint ventures and material
associates are set out in notes 28, 29 and 30 to the
financial statements.

2, BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Notwithstanding that, the Company had net current
liabilities of HK$34,379,862,000 as at 31 December
2019, the Company had sufficient resources
including unutilised committed banking facilities,
unutilised note quotas under its medium term note
programme of its wholly owned subsidiary and the
subsidiaries of the Company would not demand for
repayment such that the Company will be able to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
Consequently, the directors have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREAB A RAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M EWEER
31 December 2019

20194 12 § 31 H

3.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include ali Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards {("HKASs™) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

3.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The company level financial information for the
year ended 31 December 2019 has been prepared for
voluntary purposes. The Company, as a holding
company, has prepared consolidated financial
statements for the Company as its statutory financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Consequently, this company level financial
information and the comparatives do not constitute
the Company’s statutory financial statements for
either of the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Information relating to the Company’s statutory
consolidated financial statements required to be
disclosed in accordance with section 436 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

As the Company is a public company, it is required
to deliver its financial statements to the Registrar of
Companies as required by section 662(3) of, and
Part 3 of Schedule 6 to, the Companies Ordinance.
The Company’s auditor has reported on the
consolidated level financial statements for both
years. The auditor’s reports were unqualified; did
not include a reference to any maiters to which the
auditor drew attention by way of emphasis; and did
not contain a statement under either sections 406(2),
407(2) or (3) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREABRHARA T
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W REERE
31 December 2019

200194E 12 B 31 H

3.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The equity method has not been applied in respect
of the Company’s interests in joint ventures and
associates as the Company is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bank of China Limited, which
prepares consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, which can be obtained at its registered
office.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

33

The Company has adopted the following new and
revised HKFRSs for the first time in the current
year’s financial statements, which are applicable to
the Company.

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HKFRS 16
Leases

Amendments to HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint-Ventures

HE(IFRIC)-Int 23
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,

HKAS 12 and HKAS 23 under Annua!
Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017

Cycle
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
HREEAREFRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W SRR R
31 December 2019

2009%F 12 H 31 H

3.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new standards
and amendments are described below:

(a)

(b}

Under HKFRS 9, a debt instrument can be
measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
provided that the contractual cash flows are
‘solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPPI
criterion) and the instrument is held within
the appropriate business model for that
classification. The amendments to HKFRS 9
clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI
criterion regardless of an event or
circumstance that causes the early
termination of the contract and irrespective
of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the
contract. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int
15 Operating Leases - Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for most leases
under a single on-balance sheet model.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17
whereby lessors continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore,
HKFRS 16 has not had an impact on leases
where the Company is the lessor.
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREAREFRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wt SRR
31 December 2019

2019412 A 31 H

33

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

For leases previously classified as
operating leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 in which the Company is
the lessee, the Company has applied
HKFRS 16 retrospectively in accordance
with the transitional provisions therein
using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, the cumulative effect
of initially applying HKFRS 16 was
recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at 1 January
2019 and the comparative information has
not been restated and continued to be
reported under HKAS 17. In addition,
lease liabilities were recognised at 1
January 2019 and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at that date and the
corresponding right-of-use assets were
measured at the same amount, adjusted by
any prepaid or accrued lease payments
recognised immediately before 1 January
2019.

The Company has elected to use the
transitional practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
at the date of initial application. The
Company has also elected to use the
recognition exemptions for lease contracts
that, at the commencement date, had a
Iease term of 12 months or less and did not
contain a purchase option ("short-term
leases"), and lease contracts for which the
underlying asset was of low value ("low-
value assets").

BANK OF CHINA GROUF INVESTMENT LIMITED

33

19

SHBRERBHERE (8)

MZETRA (FaitfEn £ 17 5
MEE (ERYEREHRBRERS) M
BAERASORAEEME AT
fEREBAD MEETS, £4A7OH
WHTREEER, TH (B EH
HHELDY B 16 52537 KL iHE
. BB, BYRE (FiEM
FMEHENY 8 16 SH RS
WAXT 2019 45 1 A 1 B B7ERE 4]
REBAHRE, BB BELHTER
HARE (CHFHSHENY 8 17 S84
W, ok, HERFET 2019181
Bk, HEFKEEAZTEOIE T
B, AL EMEHRFZEN, M
B, AH SE R A B BB P R S
=, JF@d 20194 1 A 1 HZBi#iA
AT fT TR AT 3% FH ol S 38 55 A B AT
.

AT EIEFER T ERR A2
RN TEZ B RN (&
W END 8 17 SHEE (BRFEY
FMEBRERS) BBRALE 452
BERIAAEENER. ZARTES
EHEEE, MHEBN 12 AERMF
BAEWETHER ( “GHAE” ) 1
HEASR, URMHEXABESHERKE
C “IRMEER” ) KRS S EEHH
B 4.

FRERREFRAR



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
FERIEHRAFRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M % E R
31 December 2019

20019412 A 31 H

33

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

The Company has also elected to apply the
following practical expedients when
applying HKFRS 16 retrospectively to
leases previously classified as operating
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 in which the Company was the lessee:

* Asingle discount rate was applied to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics;

¢ Initial direct costs were excluded from
the measurement of the right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2019; and

* In accordance with the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 16, the
Company was not required to make
any adjustments on transition for
leases in which the Company was the
lessor and has accounted for those
leases applying HKFRS 16 from 1
January 2019,

The adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 by the Company has given rise to
additional lease liabilities of
HK$63,712,000 at 1 January 2019 with
corresponding right-of-use assets of the
same amount recognised. The adoption
has had no impact on the Company’s
equity at 1 JTanunary 2019.
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREARAFTRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W FREER
31 December 2019

20194 12 A 31 H

33

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
{continued)

The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 is
3.81%.

There is no significant difference between
the amount of the operating lease
commitments at 31 December 2018
disclosed  applying the previous
accounting standards (see note 22),
discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 and the
amount of lease liabilities recognised in
the statement of financial position at 1
January 2019,
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FREABREFRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M EH MBI
31 December 2019

20195 12 A 31 H

33

©

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
{continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term
Interesis in Associates and Joint Ventures
clarify that an entity applies HKFRS 9 to
long-term interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is not
applied but that, in substance, form part of
the net investment in the associate or joint
venture (long-term interests). Hence, an
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS
28, including the impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9, when accounting for such
long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied
to the net investment, which includes the
long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint
venture and impairment of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture.

The amendments also clarify that, in
applying HKFRS 9, an entity does not take
account of any losses of the associate or joint
venture, or any impairment losses on the net
investment, recognised as adjustments to the
net investment in the associate or joint
venture that arise from applying HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures.

The Company assessed its business model
for its long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures upon adoption of the
amendments on 1 January 2019 and
concluded that the long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures continued to be
measured at amortised cost in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the
amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the
Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33

(d)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

HEK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments addresses the accounting for
income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of
HKAS 12. The interpretation does not apply
to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS
12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax
freatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses the following:

® Whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately;

e The assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities;

*» How an entity determines taxable
profits (tax losses), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates;

* How an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances

The interpretation has had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the
Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019

20194E 12 A 31 H

33

(e)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations clarifies
that, when an entity obtains control of a
business that is a joint operation, it must
apply the requirements for a business
combination achieved in stages and
remeasure its entire previously held interest
in the joint operation at fair value. The
amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the
Company as there was no transaction during
the current period in the scope of the
amendment.

HKEFRS 11 Joint Arrangements clarifies that
when an entity that participates in, but does
not have joint control, of a joint operation
obtains joint control over that joint operation
that is a business, it does not remeasure the
interest it previously held in that joint
operation. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company as there was no
transaction during the current period in the
scope of the amendments.

HKAS 12 Income Taxes clarifies that an
entity recognises all income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity,
depending on where the entity recognised the
originating transaction or event that
generated the distributable profits giving rise
to the dividends. The amendments have had
no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.
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33

34

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs clarifies that an
entity treats as part of general borrowings
any specific borrowing originally made to
develop a qualifying asset, and that is still
outstanding, when substantially all of the
activities necessary to prepare that asset for
its intended use or sales are complete, Since
the Company’s current practice is in line with
the amendments, they have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the
Company.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCTAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

33

34

SMBREHBIOEE (8

(FHETTHN) 8 23 B—EHF5H
WRE, FUBEARAHTHAREGHR
HE BT T A R A KA A — AR 3K
f—#8r, PP R FMARR
AT H SRS F WS 5k
B, shERMBARELMER. BFEL
AWM SR Bk S BT -5, Hik, k%
AT A XA A 10 54w 3l G e
AR

ESHERERY (FRMEREE
Ty

The Company has not applied the following new 7/ 5) 35k F %% &40 %= W R H T 5 B 55
and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are {5 3 5k 4= 34 1) 5 1 EREEBITH (FRWEH
not yet effective, in these financial statements. EARENY o FEFHIERSEITH (BB SIR

Among the new and revised HKFRSs, the following LAY F, NFE—EAEXREEEEAT

are cxpected to be relevant to the Company’s
financial statements upon becoming effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material’

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020

No mandatory effective date yet determined
but avaiiable for adopiion
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2019£ 12 § 31 H

34 ISSUED BUT NOT YETEFFECTIVE 34 BHfi{EkERN (FBHEREE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL Wy ()
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are F AW ERAFA AR Z 5% (HHEMSHRE
expected to be applicable to the Company is #EY 23— $HEEWT:
described below.

(@ Theamendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (a) {(FHBLiHN)Y 55 1 B8 (FiELSHH

were issued in January 2019 to align the By % 8 52X BiTT 20194 1 H KA,
definition of “material” across the BLEGE— & MFHEX “BE” EN, H#
standards and to clarify certain aspects of I X HE T E T OUEN . e i
the definition. The new definition states H, WMETAEMIER. SRRES
that information is material if omitting, BEERENERE MY S RENTE
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably "

be expected to influence decisions that the gﬁi{%zﬁgﬁg%ﬁgggﬁg gg
primary users of general purpose financial . ZABITEE EE‘E:{;%%?% a

statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments

MR, RFEERTA . BT

clarify that materiality will depend on the BT 2020 % 1 1 HRZEFIRIEE
nature or magnitude of information, or wmEHNER, HIHHRABFHE
both. The amendments are effective for AE A ERE=EE R,

annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 and are not expected
to have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements upon
adoption.

(b) The amendments to HKFRS 3 were issued (b) {FHMEMEHN) & 3 245TF 2019

in January 2019 and clarify and provide F1HRAM, LA S 1 IR AR
additional guidance on the definition of a FEEE] . BITH BT AR T BT
business. The amendments help entities — BN EEETRT LS. BT
determine whether an acquired set of M TR S EEER, HERT
activities and assets is a business. They HEHBEES BB EE AT
clarify the minimum requirements for a N o 7L {1

business, remove the assessment of i, Br8 T B LA AR

whether market participants are capable of RERER &ﬂﬁ HIFES!, o T A %5
replacing any missing elements, add Al 55 7= i ECJ%‘X ’ %?l )\IEIJEE‘J’&
guidance to help entities assess whether an YHER T EIR . B ITH Al R R
acquired process is substantive, narrow the RT 2020 4 | 4 1 HRZ G FF 4 B &
definitions of a business and of outputs, HRNRERNTZ S,

and introduce an optional fair valve

concentration test. The amendments are to

be applied prospectively to transactions

occurring in reporting periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2020.
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FREE R R RA T
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M B R
31 December 2019
20194E 12 A 31 H
3.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 34 EHAiERENN (BRMERER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL my (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS
{continued)
(c) Theamendmentsto HKFRS 10 and HKAS (c) (FEMHIREGHET) £ 10 20 (Fikd
28 (2011) were issued in October 2014 FHENTY 2 28 5 (2011 46> 2 &0 F
with an original effective date for a 2014 %€ 10 B RA6, ¥4 HEN 2016
Tnancial gglfgd Eﬁ?ﬁng on ;glgﬂerthl 18 1 ARG I 5300 2016
anuary . anuary , the , AL F AN SR T A
HKICPA deferred the effective date of E f—lE)%{ E%%Eéfg FZI—% ;ﬁfg ﬁﬁgg
these amendments because the IASB is S ity - o A
planning a broader review that may result vl‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁgkl‘%;g ’ f\hﬁ'ﬁﬁfﬁﬁgg
in the simplification of accounting for such ;E' Aﬁ%i ;ig é 5 ! é%%l[ oy
transactions and of other aspects of N ol :'L = 2 : H .
accounting for associates and joint 2 H fm’% RN EE L ERHA
ventures. A new effective date will be BrRZMEERHE. EIHRTUR
determined at a future date when the JASB RESEEIT. (FHMESIMEEN) 5
finalises its broader review. However, the 10 S8 (FHSHAEND 5285 (2011
amendments are available for adoption £ MBI, BT (FHMEHREHE
now. The amendments to HKFRS 10 and Yy £1055 (FHESTHEN) F285
HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency (2011 ) EAEHUESHBESRS
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 =Bl Lo b g = = %5 N BTl S
and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the —HE. MRAREESEBEREE
sale or con:i:ribution of assets between an Sl 2 TR B L R A R TR
investor and its associate or joint venture. S A e N gy
The amendments require a full recognition % ﬂM%tTEjEméﬁ%?ﬁﬁ - MW
of a oai ] h BAMBLFEHIR=NRZS, HEST
gain or loss when the sale or = A 45 29 7E B R OO 2% R L, 1B
contribution of assets between an investor X - e
and its associate or joint venture {Rﬁﬁxfﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ‘n Bk
constitutes a business. For a transaction PRTR AR NEE . BT T
involving assets that do not constitute a HHRF .
business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrclated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture, The
amendments are to be applied
prospectively.
BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 27  FHESHSHARAR



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREERBEA AT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W &R RER
31 December 2019

20194£ 12 B 3185

3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those rcturns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Company
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Company considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arsing from other contractual
arrangements; and

(¢) the Company’s voting rights and potential

voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less any impairment losses,

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Company has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.
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20019412 H31 8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Investments in agsociates and joint ventures
(continued)

A joint venturc is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint comtrol is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.,

The results of an associate and a joint venture are
included in the Company’s statement of profit or
loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in an
associate and a joint venture are treated as non-
current assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
CUITENCY.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, or the
exchange rates that approximate the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Exchange
differences arising from the settlement of such
transactions are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the financial reporting date are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Exchange differences arising from the
retranslation at the year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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PREAREFTRAT
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W ERELRE
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20194612 531 H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are

measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are
transiated using the foreign exchange rates at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in foreign
currencies are transiated using the foreign exchange
rates at the date the fair value is determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial asgets

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss. Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that
is, the date when the Company commits to purchase
or sell the assets.

Classification and measurement

Debt instruments are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method,
subject to impairment if the assets are held for
the collection of contractual cash flows where
those contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest,

Debt instruments are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if the
assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest and the
assets are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value with any gains or losses from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and
reversal, foreign exchange gains and losses and
interest calculated using the effective interest
rate method which are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from
other comprehensive income to profit or loss
when the financial asset is derecognised.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or as financial assets at fair
value though other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Interest income for these financial assets is
included in finance income.

Equity investments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss unless, on initial
recognition, the Company has irrevocably
elected to designate such investments that are
not held for trading as equity investments at fair
valve through other comprehensive income.
Dividends of such investments are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the
Company’s right to receive payment is
established. Changes in the fair value of such
investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are never recycled
to profit or loss even when the assets are sold.

Impairment

The Company applies the expected credit loss
model on all the financial assets that are subject
to impairment, financial guarantee contracts,
contract assets under HKFRS 15.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.5 FELSHBERE (4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continyed)

Financial assets (continued) SRBEE (8

Impairment (continued) B (8

Impairment allowances are recognised under SR IR AP BT B R A TREAfS B4R
the general approach where expected credit KW —IBAFEFARBRE. STFEHG
losses are recognised in two stages. For credit A 1S RS 70 52 8 hn i 4 i
cxpo;ures where there has not been a; EATGEERE 124 F R B EELE
significant increase in credit risk since initia . et g : .
recognition, the Company is required to {tfﬁﬁ &k E;Jﬁ}ﬂ R = A @Jﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁ‘}kﬁ
provide for credit losses that result from FHRREENMAFEARD, BidEN
possible default events within the next 12 TR &4, 9 ORI RTF S
months. For those credit exposures where there HHAE AR R AN .

has been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition, a loss allowance is

required for credit losses expected over the

remaining life of the exposure irrespective of

the timing of the default.

Derecognition =I5
Financial assets are derecognised when the RETHERN, SREE&EmA: M
rights to receive cash flows from the assets ZEMBERENSRENRFA O3]
have expired; or where the Company has 1, BAL T CHBRND SRS
transferred its contractual rights to receive the SHE RS RBRASFERAEER LT

cash flows of the financial assets and has = = 2 .
transferred substantially all the risks and 1A PGB SAAE BN ZE

rewards of ownership; or where control is not A B 7 At
retained.
Financial liabilities A R

Financial liabilities include bank and other &RifIMAIFRTERRIMER. ¥ EFAM
borrowings, trade payables, accruals and other I, FHiZ2P K H AL EE bk £4 4. & ahh i
monetary liabilities. They are initially recognised at 3774 BN 2 A A AR R BB R 5

the fair value of the consideration received less . S e ] 22 3 [
directly attributable transaction costs, After initial zﬁ%i%?jjﬁm#ﬁﬁmﬁ’ feRsEbr IRk AR

recognition, they are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are  4Fh A fRAE LT (DR SRR EREL sk 3R
extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged i 22 1|- A .
or cancelled, or expires,
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20194F 12 A 31 H

3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its equity investments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the
Company makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount.
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20194E 12 A 31 H

3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial asgsets (continued)
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-
generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of the
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had mo
impairment loss been recognised in prior vears. The
reversal of the impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Company
ift
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

has control or joint control over the
Company;

has significant influence over the
Company; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a
parent of the Company;

0
(i)
(i)

or
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2009412 B 31 H

3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(b}

(@)
(i)

(iii)
(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

the entity and the Company are
members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Company are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Company or
an entity related to the Company;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to the parent of the
Company.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Items of property plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset {o its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement, Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principa! annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Owned assets

WHEBE

Leasehold improvements

HMBEWHRTHE
Furniture and equipments

HKAREE
Motor vehicles

EHITA

Right-of-use assets

1 AR Bt =
Buildings
&m
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25%

Over the remaining lease terms
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment is the difference between the

net saies proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset and is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss,

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
(i) Lessee (under HKFRS 16)

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of
the identified asset. All leases with a term of more
than 12 months are recognised as assets
representing the right of use of the underlying
asset and liabilities representing the obligation to
make lease payments, unless the underlying asset
is of low value. Both the assets and the liabilities
are initially measured on a present value basis.
Right-of-use assets are recognised under
property, plant and equipment and are measured
at cost or valuation less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease labilities,
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a siraight-
line basis over the shorter of the useful lives of
the assets and the lease terms. Lease labilities are
initially measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made under the lease terms and
subsequently adjusted by the effect of the interest
on and the settlement of the lease liabilities, and
the re-measurement arising from any
reassessment of the lease liabilities or [ease
modifications.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.5 EESUHECEBRE (48
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued) ME 8

(i) Lessee (under HKAS 17) () EAA C(EBRSTEN) 175

The determination of whether an arrangement is,
or contains, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of
whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset and
whether the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset. Finance leases, which transfer to the
Company substantially all the rewards and risks
incidental to ownership of a leased item, are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair
value of the leased item, or if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance
charges and reduction in the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are expensed through the statement:of
profit or loss. Capitalised leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Operating lease payments, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are recognised as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash eguivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management,

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar
in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Dividends

Interim dividends arc simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to setile the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present value
at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in the statement of profit ot loss.
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35 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax,
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting  period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Company operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

35

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
peither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if and only if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
Management fee income

Revenue from the provision of management
services is recognised over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Company.

Revenue from other sources

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and the amount of ihe dividend can be
measured reliably.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Company operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Company in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as and when the
contributions fall due.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continuaily evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors inchiding expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates may not equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

{continued)

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
quoted in active markets are determined by using
valuation techniques. When the present value of the
future cash flow of investments can be reliably
estimated, they are calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flow at its weighted average
cost of capital. When the present value of the future
cash flow of investments cannot be reliably
estimated, their fair values are estimated with
reference to the net asset value of the latest financial
information of the investee company adjusted by
the fair value difference identified on individual
assets and liabilities. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount
and future cash flows are reviewed periodically.

The uniisted equity investments have been valued
based on a market-based valuation technique as
detailed in note 26 to the financial statements. The
valuation requires the Company to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select the
price multiple. In addition, the Company makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Company classifies the fair value
of these investments as Level 3. The fair value of
the unlisted equity investments as at 31 December
2019 was HK$21,020,455,000 (2018:
HK$22,981,428,000). Further details are included
in note 26 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Significant judgements in applving the entity’s

accounting policies
Impairment assessment of subsidiaries, joint
ventures, associates and loans and receivables

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment, particularly in assessing whether
the objective evidence for impairment exists as a
result of the occurrence of the one or more events
indicating that the related assets values may not be
recoverable, Events that come to the attention of the
management included: defaults or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, signals of significant
financial difficulty, decrease in the projected
petformance and the resulting future cash flow,
adverse changes in the payments statues of the
creditors, and national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the underlying assets
keld in the investee company, etc.

4,

If management has determined that objective
evidence for impairment exists, expected future
cash flows are estimated based on observable data
obfained and impairment is assessed in accordance
with the Company’s accounting policy.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Significant judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (continued)

Determination of the classification of investments

The Company follows the guidance of relevant
accounting standards and classifies its investments
in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
management collects and evaluates evidence to
determine the existence of significant influence or
control, purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired, the substance of the participation in its
investee companies. This evidence includes
representation on the board of directors,
participation in policy-making processes, material
transaction with the investee, interchange of
managerial personnel and provision of essential
technical information. Judgement is applied in
determining whether these evidences can affect the
Company’s power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee company.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER

GAIN/(LOSS)

5. M. FflBEs #HERD

Revenue from other sources includes dividend HAdb&UrA, EIERERA. FIEILA.

income and interest income.

An analysis of revenue and other gain/(loss) is as

follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Management fee income

Revenue from other sources
Dividend income from:
Subsidiaries
Joint ventures
- Associates
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest income
Others

Other gain/(loss
Net fair value losses on financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of an associate

Gain on disposal of ftems of of property,
plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange differences

Reversal of impairment of amounts due
from a joint venture

Impairment of accounts and other
receivables

Others
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BT AR SRR 165,125
SEEECE b 2 :
kA bl gl €l 11
L AR 30,574
BB A W 2k TR AR R
&} 21,870
Sy e At R Wi S TR k(B ( 102)
HoAth 2,177
8,650
HEk AR AR AR

2018
HK$'000
T

48

3,120,314
6,033
49,757

730,872
183,592
10

4,090,626

(1,506,842)

22,904
19,907
292,573

8
29,451

10,827

(1,131,172)
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FRRE R FEA R A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W EREER
31 December 2019

20194E 12 5318

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Company’s profit before tax is arrived at after

6. BiRrAINME

charging:
2019
HK$"000
HWHETFT
Depreciation #71R 36,686
Minimum lease payment under operating
leases SE AR E AR
Lease payments not included in the FPANHE AT ENAR
measurement of lease liabilities AT 79
Staff costs (including directors’ ATRA (AEERH
remuneration): B
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind LH, BSHHAER 107,552
Other emoluments HoAh FE 101,959
Pension scheme contributions FE L 9,874
219,385
Legal and professional fees FEEMEIRERA 45,505
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. M%ﬁfﬂ
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: [V g% = kig i i
2019
HKS'000
#HTT
Interest expense in respect of: FLR 3T H:
Bank borrowings RIT MR 327,971
Loans from fellow subsidiarics R RFA R HMEE 429,543
Bonds issued BATHE 232,967
Amounts due to subsidiarics BEAFF 20 R R0 40,969
Lease liabilities HEfAR 2,116

1,033,566
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FRFARAFEE U T HYERFRINT:

2018
HKS$'000
BT

2,750

35,855

2018
HKS$'000
BHTRT

183,305
278,877
116,504

31,985

610,671




BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREE R HARAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ot E R
31 December 2019

2019 12 A31H

8. INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the Company did not generate any
assessable profits for arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2018: Nil). Income tax on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Company operates and
invests.

The Company’s gross dividend income and certain
interest income are subject to PRC withholding tax
at rates ranging from 5% to 10%.

8. EB

BT FABRAEELEEE I RABE, &k
FEFAALT/HREBLWHTER (2018:
F) o HARERAMX AR REREAEAL
VIR 25 0E B AR AT R T R A 2
BT,

A2 A B BN R SN BRI R A
RIMBERIMRBEEBEMN, BRRS%E
10%.

2019 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT AT
Current tax for the year: 2 MR

- Current tax for the year - AEFTE S .
Withholding tax: TR BT 1851 .

- Withholding tax for the year - EERTAE T ER 85,807 ( 111,584)
Deferred tax BERTRE 8,688 17,883
Total it 94,495 ( 93,701)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W HRBTERE
31 December 2019

201912 31 H

8. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate to the tax expenses
at the effective tax rate is as follows:

8. BB (4

RS R BRI B TR S B A
AL bR AT R B 2 F MR B IR
¥

2019 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BHETx BT
Profit before tax Fd U 2,978,425 1,979,765
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5%  #RiEFIPLE 16.5%H B K L8057
(2018: 16.5%) B (2018: 16.5%) 491,440 326,661
Expenses not deductible for tax AT S 269,993 414,853
Income not subject to tax SRRl ( 764,131) ( 736,519
Tax effect of other allowances that are .
deductible in determining taxable F_‘?ﬁl’]fﬁ.ﬁﬁ {%%ﬁfiﬂﬁjjﬁ?u R AR
profit but not recognised as deferred W AIRIE AT B 3 = O Bl %
tax asset | ( 931) ( 295)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not ARA B R F A TR T 4R 0B
recognised Wiz m 12,317 13,183
Foreign withholding tax/(credit) MU ABTERY (R 85,807 { 111,584)
Tax charge/(credit) at the effective rate 3%FH 3% M SRR Z H &R ET B
0of 3% (2018: -4.7%) B W/ (%D (2018
-4.7%) 94,495 (93,701

The Company has cumulative tax losses arising in
Hong Kong of HK$866,762,000 (2018:
HK$792,113,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against its future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
cumulative tax losses in the opinion of directors,
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

9. DIVIDENDS

Interim - HK$5.76 (2018: HK$3.31)
per ordinary share

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

A FEHBNERTRINGHMASBD
866,762,000 7z (2018: ¥ 792,113,000 %) .
B 5% T AT HEAH SR ST Y L A B BT 45 R EL G
RER. AATERHRUNGHEIRB AR
% AT HESD T 40 W oK SN B g B T 45 4 A T B
AR, B B0 VT A0 R LA A R 33 5T
P BB,

HH — #M 5.76 o0 (2018:3E T
331 M) S

9. HBE
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EHTT T
1,127,283

1,962,745
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019

20194E 12 A 31 H

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 10. BEEH™
EQUIPMENT
Right-of-use assety Owned ts_hel, der finam s
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
Buildings Total Improvements quip t hicl Total Total
HEynk N
B i TR REREE EWLIR Ait i
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HES'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000
BPFTE  BHTR BT BETR BETT  EHTT wHTT
31 December WERZAN
2019 B
At 1 January 2019 019%1R1A
(s originally Q1852015
presented): B
Cost A 16,397 23,061 5,763 45,721 45,721
Accumulated
depreciation RitiiA - < (16293 (16,690 {5665 (38,648 (38,648
Net carrying
amount FemEEE 604 6,371 98 7,073 7,073
Effect of adoption ~ “RF HKFRS 16
of HKFRS 16 HIREm (ERE
(notes 3.3) 3.3) 63,712 63,712 - - - 63,712
At1January 2019 201941810
(as restated) (EiRD 63,712 63,712 604 6,371 98 7,073 70,785
At 1 Janwary 2019451 H 1
2019, net of 2. mMBgit
accumulated 3 10 R T
Bicpieciatinn i 63,712 63,712 604 6371 98 7,073 70,785
Additions A 7,848 7,848 193 4,704 ) 4,897 12,745
Depreciation
provided .
during the year ~ ZZ34717 ( 329700 ( 32,%70) (310 ( 3308 ( o) (3,716 ( 36,6%6)
Disposals B (26 (436 - )] - 1) ( a7
At31December 2019 #F 12 B 31
2019, net of B, MBEH
?ﬂmﬂ?d IR
eprociation & 38,164 38,164 487 7,766 B, 8,253 46,417
At 31 December 2019412 A 31
2019; H:
Cost 573 71,104 71,104 17,090 23,172 5,763 46,025 117,129
Accumulated
depreciation RitdiP ( 32,940) (32,940 (_ 16,603) (154060 (5763} { 37,772 ( 70.712)
Net carrying
amount W T 38,164 38,164 487 7,766 - 8,253 46,417

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MERERER
31 December 2019

20194 12 31 H

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 0. FEE#HEE G
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Leasehold Furnitore
improvements and Motor
AmplER equipments vehicles Total
I8 HFARR& IEWIA At

HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
BETRE BHTE  BHTx  BETR

31 December 2018 2018412 H 31 B

At 1 January 2018: 2018% 18 1 H:
Cost fo %S 16,507 19,139 5,763 41,409
Accumuiated depreciation Bit4riA { 15,958) ( 14,527) { 5497 { 35,982)
Net carrying amount TR A 549 4,612 266 5,427

At 1 January 2018, net of 20185F1 A1 H, fuR

accumulated depreciation ATHT AR 5 549 4,612 266 5427
Additions AAE R 390 4,006 - 4,396
Depreciation provided

during the year AAEHTIH (335 ( 2,247) ( 168) ( 2,750
As 31 December 2018, netof 2018 12 318, #
accumulated depreciation R R IR S 604 6,371 98 7,073
At 31 December 2018: 2018412 H 31 H:

Cost %3 16,897 23,061 5,763 45,721
Accumulated depreciation HitiriH { 16,293) ( 16,690) { 5,665) { 38,648)
Net carrying amount T TH 7 4E 604 6,371 98 7,073

The Company leases certain of its offices, used AAFMEHA BT EEER. KB~ M

in its operations. Leases for these assets are AHAN_ZE=%, I SEHRgbERN, Fa
negotiated for terms ranging from two to three SR E .

years with no extension or termination options

and all the lease payments are fixed.

The Company entered into two 3-year lease A AT LR —~HMBEATITL T HEA 48 F
agreements ending 15 June 2020 and 30 June 20204F 6 5 15 HA 20214F 6 f 30 H 3458 3 48

2021 respectively with a fellow subsidiary to MBI, FEES BN NG,
lease office premises in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W F IR R
31 December 2019

20094212 E 31 H

11,

Investment in subsidiaries
Unlisted shares, at costs
Less: Impairment losses

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note

®))

Less: Impairment }osses

Investments in subsidiaries

Non-current assets
Loans to and receivables from
subsidiaries (note (a))

Current assets
Loans to and receivables from
subsidiaries (note (a))

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries {note

0)

Non-current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note

()
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

11. #BHFAH
2019 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT b R
wF A
3k ERRE, A 23,596,037 21,061,400
W WEfE (647,020 (647,020
22,949,017 20,414,380
B PATRE GEROG)
47,295,389 41,064,467
. BiEEE (422335 ( 422,335)
46,873,054 40,642,132
THFLA 69,822,071 61,056,512
E| kil g
FWCF AT R ESRT (8
(a)) 4,795,813 5,398,319
Pixb S
BT AR ERE (ER
(ap 2,179,731 1,684,266
Hzh AR
BT FARSRM (HEEC)
17,418,780 18,274,206
E[ ik
REATFATERIE GER(C)
4,375,963
PR R AR



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FRERRAARAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W ERELRE
31 December 2019

2019412 31 H

11.

Notes:
(a)

(b)

)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
{continued)

Loans to and receivables from subsidiaries
amounted to HK$6,975,544,000 (2018:

HK$7,082,585,000), comprises
US$7,106,000 {equivalent to
HK$55,383,000) (2018: US$10,028,000
(equivalent to HK$78,487,000)),
RMB5,061,166,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,744,929,000) (2018:
RMBS5,045,478,000 (equivalent to

HK$5,730,150,000)) and HK$1,290,624,000
(2018: HKS$1,273,948,000) which bear
interest at 6 month LIBOR+5% and 2.16% to
570% per annum (2018: 6 month
LIBOR+5% and 1.95% to 7.89% per
annum), with the maturity ranging from 2020
to 2024 (2018: 2019 to 2021).

Amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the amounts due from subsidiaries
are considered as part of the Company’s
investments in its subsidiaries.

Except for the amounts due to subsidiaries
amounted to US$145,000,000 (equivalent to
HKS§1,130,116,000) (2018: US$145,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,134,872,000) ) and
US$561,460,000 {(equivalent to
HK$4,375,963,000) (2018: US$27,100,000
{equivalent to HK$212,104,000) ) which
bear interest of 2.93% and 3.00% (2018:
2.50% to 3.63%) per annum and mature in
2020 and 2024 (2018: 2019 and 2019)
respectively and, the amounts are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

11.

BEFAA (&)

HE:

(a)

(®)

(c)

57

FRFARARERETAE T AET
6,975,544,000 7T ( 2018 wom
7,082,585,000 Ju) , ®IEREIT 7,106,000
(P EHT 55,383,000 76) (2018: =T
10,028,000, & 78,487,000 7T) ,
AR T 5061,166,000 7& (& 3 @
5744929000 5t > (2018: AR if
5,045,478,000 7T, HFrEHET 5,730,150,000
J6) KM 1,290,624,000 7T (2018: ¥
M 1,273,948,000 70) HEFER 6 15
LIBOR+5% 1 2.16% & 5.70% 2 |
(2018: HEFFN 6 H LIBOR+5%FI
1.95%% 7.89%2.18)) , FH# HEE AN
2020 4EF 2024 4 (2018: 2019 4E % 2021
£ .

B 20194 12 B 31 DK 20184 12 J
31 H, MIRFARRILIHEN. REE
EEERFR. ZAREENN, N
WTARRTEHWEFANERLTHRE
T AT —E5.

R F AR RIASHETT 145,000,000
($rE#BT 1,130,116,000 55) (2018

X L 145000000 ( H & #E H
1,134,872,000 75> ) FETT 561,460,000
(FrEET 4,375,963,000 7T) (2018

RJT 27,100,000 (FEHET 212,104,000
LY ) MERFER 293% A 3.00%
(2018: 250%%E 3.63%) , BHAH N
2020 FEF1 2024 5 (2018: 2019 4EF1 2019
), HAMRA T2 R I .

®B. EEETHAR.

FETFATHMIIFEM S REER
28.

PHRERR A RAT
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20094£ 12 A 31 H

12, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 12.

AND JOINT VENTURES

Investments in associates (note (a)) ¥FELE Ak (FEFE(a))

Investments in joint ventures BBEAEMSY EBODb)
(note (b))
(a) Investments in associates {a)
Investments, at cost WEBE A, #aA

Amount due from an associate ol 47 =i e
Less: Impairment losses e WEEE

BRERESWRESE S

2019
HKS$'000
o

104,631
1,541,113

1,645,744

BEBE
2019
HK$'000
®HTH

104,631

1,244
( 1,244)

104,631

2018
HKS$'000
BETT

104,631

1,510,316

1,614,947

2018
HKS$'000
EBHTT

104,631

1,250
(1,250

104,631

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, AIUCERES A VVERIHI LI . A a K — LB R

interest-free and repayable on demand. Bl T2,

Details of material associates are set out in note 30 FEEE MW EMFIR T M ESIRELE 30,

to the financial statements.
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31 December 2019

2019412 B 31 H

12, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 12. #BEESVESEM (8)
AND JOINT VENTURES (continued)

(b) Investments in joint ventures by FHHEESEMDW

2019 2018

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

WwHTT R

Investments, at cost TH-SES, EEA 1,558,576 1,524,519
Less: Impairment losses . BEEE (  17463) { 17,463)
1,541,113 1,507,056

Amount due from a joint venture W& E 4k ERIR . 25,130
Less: Impairment loss W WAEEE . ( 21870)
3,260

1,541,113 1,510,316

In 2018, the amount due from a joint venture is - 2018 4E, M &8 Ml BB N T, £

unsecured, bears interest at 1% per annum and F23 19%FI— B TR BLLIE.
repayable on demand.

Details of material joint ventures are set out innote & ¥\l BBANFI R 28 I I F 5 29,
29 to the financial statements.
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HRERREARAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W& RRER
31 December 2019
20094F 12 A 31 H
13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 13.  PAARbHET R R Y58
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR Y
LOSS
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T BT
Financial assets at fair value BARMETEHLREBRTAY
through profit or loss BRI SRl
- Equity investments - R 20,531,018 20,960,809
- Debt instruments - A - 1,511,820
- Fund investments -EEH® 490,038 509,441
22,982,070

As at 31 December 2019, debt instruments and fund
investments amounting to HK$490,038,000 (2018:
HK$2,021,261,000) were classified as at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

21,021,056

2019 4F 12 A 31 H, AA\EEHENTEME
EH RS HNHET 490,038,000 JT (2018:
2,021,261,000 7v) , AITHARREKEERN
HAEEFFBHEN, Hib#ErRNUL R0
fEiH 8 HEAh - A SRR S e RE R,

14. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, 14, M REAEREERT, #H4RBASm
ACCOUNTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
WETT wHTx
Accounts receivable ol &= 0] 33,417 41,174
Less: Loss allowance for
impairment of accounts receivable ¥i: RINERTBUR AR E ( 30,199 ( 39,684)
Accounts receivable, net R ERIN — FpE 3,218 1,490
Deposits He 280 833
Interest receivables Rl E, 38,014 44,252
Prepayments TRATEIR 2,097 4,587
44,509 51,162
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31 December 2019

20194E 12 A 31 H

14. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, 14, MR FAPERR, 4 RHATHRR
ACCOUNTS AND OTHER (8
RECEIVABLES (continued)
The movements in the loss allowance for R IR R TR,
impairment of accounts receivable are as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT T
At 1 January SFHIZH 39,684 39,692
Impairment losses BaHI® 102 -
Amount written off as uncollectible B I5 5 7] T 44 50 &30 ( 9587 :
Exchange difference TR & BT L 0y S ST B - ( 8)
At 31 December SER S 30,199 39,684

Included in the above loss allowance for impairment
of accounts receivable is an allowance for
individually impaired accounts receivable of
HK$30,199,000 (2018: HKS$39,684,000) with a
carrying  amount before  allowance of
HK$30,199,000 (2018: HK$39,684,000).

The individually impaired accounts receivable
relate to debtors that were in financial difficulties or
were in default in both interest and/or pringipal
payments and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

Except for the full impairment provision on
accounts receivable of HKS$30,199,000 (2018:
HK$39,684,000), expected credit Iosses of
remaining accounts receivables, deposits and
interest receivables as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 were considered to be minimal and the credit
exposures are classified as stage 1.

Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a
loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Company. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss
rate applied as at 31 December 2019 was nil (2018:
nil).

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

T LA MBAARER S, K0T RTHR
HIRRME A % T 30,199,000 76 (2018:
39,684,00050) , XF 57 B R M SR IR AR & BT
tHrEAH T 30,199,000 5 (2018: W
39,684,000 7T) .

% TS G RO A H % 2 B T % I
FRMRLEREF B/ EE L, Tk Heslk
IE] 23 B R I -

B 30,199,000 JCHIRIWCER IR & 4R R
& LIS (2018: #T 39,684,000 5T) , 2019
£ 12 A 31 HA0 2018 4E 12 B 31 A 8% 5 50k
A P4 R RUSCR B R TREE S B4R 2 1R N,
HERMOSZ MR —.

FHEHRARELSELATNG iRk
W/, HARKRTEENGT. RESELE
SRR LR B Y BT RS R R SR R 2 R
T 2019 4F 12 A 31 BAAREF MKk
40 (2018: 0) .

61 PR FR A R AR



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

PREARBRFRAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W B
31 December 2019
20194E 12 F 31 H
15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15. BERILEE4D
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'¢00
WHFIT WHTR
Cash at bank with: HATRIFR T
Other financial institutions Hit&phile 1,197 1,197
Branches of the immediate EERERRATZ 44T 145,302 140,538
holding company
A fellow subsidiary B &4 2,693,393 823,178
2,839,892 964,913
Short-term bank deposits HERE R 2,365,319 1,870,394
5,205,211 2,835,307

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company, and eamn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

16. OTHERPAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS
Current portion mahERa

Accrued interest on loans from
fellow subsidiaries

Accrued interest on bank
borrowings FRAT R BT
Accrued interest on bonds issued R AT RS MIPITFI A
Creditors and accrued expenses sz 8 A
Receipts in advance Ti R
Lease liabilities LB S
Others HAt
Non-current portion Ciaiikul-ig
Lease liabilities 5T

14 ] 2 R fE R AT B,

AT SRBIRAT BRI R EE R % it
B. REAAANEERSHR, EPeme
FHRE - RE=AARE, JFEHNTHE
WIFRRIRITB. SRR ENFREER
FEE R i R4 B R MReT.

16, BRSBTS
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
#HFx WHTx
167,057 167,721
14,067 13,530
70,435 72,357
202,224 217,974
16,876 60
27,031 -
895 .
498,585 471,642
11,820
510,405 471,642

Creditors and accrued expenses and receipts in TRAR B A R MR+ B R R TFHBLH

advance are non-interest-bearing and have an F—EE,

average term of less than 1 year.
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MERERR
31 December 2019

2019412 431 H

16. OTHERPAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

Maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31
December 2019

Within one year
After one year but within five years

Lease liabilities (undiscounted)

Discount amount
Lease ligbilities (discounted)

Current

Non-current

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

16.

20194F 12 A 31 B AR f i

FAPARBETERA (4

BRPRI
—EW
—FE Lk, EUR
ME R R

NI 4
MERG (DRI
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W HRFHERE
31 December 2019

2019%£ 12 H 31 H

16. OTHERPAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

Movements of carrying amounts of lease liabilities
for the year ended 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2019
Additions

Disposals

Accretion of interest
Payments

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2019
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included
in operating expenses)

The Company had total cash outflows for leases
within operating activities and financing activities
amounted to HKS$2,116,000 and HK$3Z,283,000
respectively during the year. The Company also had
non-cash additions of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$7,848,000 during the year.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

16. HABRARMEBRREE (&

B= 20194 12 § 31 HiHEH HKS'000
FOHLER 5 O MK T & A ) wHTfx
F2019%€ 1818 63,712
A RN 7,848
E ( 426)
FEHE 2,116
NEc {34399
38,851
BE 2019412 5 31 HIEEE
B, ENEEPRILNSN
MR EFERIT A E 32,970
HEAFEPORBEIH 2,116
ST ERRAENAEXSEA (&
EHEZELHRAG) 79
35,165

64

KFEHE, AAaELEEHMERESNKHE
AAETHHBHSH AT 2,166,000 TTHH
M 32,283,000 ji. AFEHE, AAEHHIER
SHERANBAFANEAB ST NET
7,848,000 7.
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31 December 2019
20094612 A 31 H
17. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 17. BT ERE ik
OTHER BORROWINGS
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TR WHTx
Current liabilities: M.
Loans from fellow subsidiaries (note
(a)) A &RT AT OER GER@) 14,299,070 12,076,370
Bank borrowings (note (b)) RITEER GEBOG) 7,924,039 10,971,485
22,223,109 23,047,855
Non-current liabilities: JEdrsh fifi:
Bank borrowings (note (b)) TR GERD) 5,563,648 o
27,786,757 23,047,855
Notes: pacs = F
(8) As at 31 December 2019, the balances (a) #Z 20194F 12 A 31 B, {EkLuiE

included unsecured loans from one (2018:
two) fellow subsidiary of HK$4,167,000,000

(2018: HK$3,467,000,000) and
US$1,300,000,000 (equivalent  to
HKS$10,132,070,000) (2018:;

US$1,100,000,000 to

HK$8,609,370,000)).

{equivalent

The loans repayable are unsecured and
carrying interests at fixed rate ranging from
2.4% to 2.9% (2018: floating rate of I month
HIBOR to HIBOR plus 1.2% and a floating
rate of 1 month LIBOR).

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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—Z (2018: WZK) RERTFARLHEFE
K, REANED 4167,000,000 G
(2018: ¥ 3,467,000,000 7T) , LK
x J6 1,300,000,000 ( £ % F B H
10,132,070,000 7> (2018 &: % ¢
1,100,000,000 (£9%-T#T 8,609,370,000
T ).
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Bl 24% & 2.9% (2018: —4 8
HIBOR # HIBOR+1.2% PA K& -~ 4 H
LIBOR) .
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FREARRARAF
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MHRTERE
31 December 2019

20194£ 12 H 31 H

17.

Notes:
(b}

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

The bank borrowings are advanced from (b)

third party banks, with maturity ranging from
2020 to 2024 (2018: 2019), unsecured and
carrying interests at 1 month HIBOR plus
1.0% to 1.5%, 1 month LIBOR plus 1.1% to
1.3% and 1 month EURIBOR plus 0.8% to
1.3% (2018: 1 month HIBOR plus 1.1%, 1
month LIBOR plus 1.2% to 1.3% and 1
month EURIBOR plus 0.8% to 1.0%).

The Company’s ultimate holding company,
BOC has provided letter of comfort to certain
of the Company’s bank loans up to
HK$1,500 million (2018: HKS$I1,500
million}.

For the amount of unutilised banking
facilities, please refer to note 27(iii) to the
financial statements.
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RITERRETHE=HMT, T 2020
2024 F£FH  (2018: 2019 &) , THE
#, %4 H HIBOR+1.0%Z 1.5%, —
A H LIBOR+1.1%ZE 13%WUE—H
EURIBORH0.8%%FE 1.3%2 3] (2018 —
4 A HIBOR+1.1% , —H LIBOR+1.2%
# 13%L % —H EURIBOR+0.8% %
1.0%< 8] .
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FRERIEAATETFBRITHR, &8
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HFEEERAREAIRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M & REFEE

31 December 2019

2001912 H31H

18. BONDS ISSUED 18. RiTHRH
2019 2018

HKS$'000 HKS$'000
WHFT by T

Current portion Wshin o 1,666,445 -

Non-current portion e BB 4 3,336,426 5,100,142
5,002,871 5,100,142

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had
outstanding notes of RMB4.5 billion (equivalent to
HKS$5.0 billion) (2018: RMB4.5 billion (equivalent
to HK$5.1 billion)) at fixed rate ranging from 4.1%
to 4.9% per annum (2018: 4.1% to 4.9% per
annum), with maturity ranging from 2020 to 2021
{2018: 2020 to 2021).

Set out below is a comparison of carrying amounts
and fair values of the Company’s bonds issned not
measured at fair value.

Medium term notes: FHHREELE .
Carrying amounts ARG
Fair values A ftirE

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value
measurement of bonds issued were classified under
Level 2 (2018: Level 2) of the fair value hierarchy
as these amounts were based on indicative bid price
obtained from a counterparty.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

BE2019F 128 31 H, AATRIINHELES
WANRT 45 @278 (WEFHH 50 27T

(2018 28 45 {250 (AESTHM 5142T)

FEFERN AI%UE 49% (2018: 41%E
49%) , T 2020 E 2021 FE3(#7 (2018: 2020
Z20214E) .

TXBIEARRBEARNENBHRITHS

REHME S 2 A ERIEEE.
2019 2018
HKS'000 HK$'000
BHTR BT
5,002,871 5,100,142
5,097,779 5,178,409

BE 2019412 A 31 O, EFMWNTEIFFHRE
BRI BARITHES SRS RNMET
ENE_BE (2018: F_E%) .
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FREARFFTRAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LB ELE %
31 December 2019

20194 12 A 1 H

19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 19, BIEFTER M

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as 33 E BT/88 fiEH9ASZh AN K«
follows:

Deferred tax liabilities i35 FE TR AL 47
Fair value changes in the
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BLAfROHE R B AR
LR 2 SRR A At
fazEsh
HKS$'000
BHTT
At 1 January 2018 201881 A1H 78,275
Deferred tax recognised in profit or loss
during the year ASET AT R 1R TR 17,883
At 3] December 2018 and 1 January 2019 20185212831 H B20194%1 A1H 96,158
Deferred tax recognised in profit or loss
during the year ARHETT AR 2 10 HE BT 8,688
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December
2019 20195125 31 HIS XL A1 f 9 5 104,846
20. SHARE CAPITAL 20, BZE
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T BT
Issued and fully paid: FATHRE.
340,517,400 ordinary shares 340,517,400 58 Az 34,051,740 34,051,740
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PREFARRERAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W ERBARE

31 December 2019

2019412 531 H

21. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

During the year, the Company had non-cash
additions and disposals of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities amounted to HK$7,348,000 and

2. BERNEERIER

BEE, KAAF20194EE 5 R THEaHEHx
B B HE 7= R FE R A SRR FE TR &0 nAn it B
45 3 T17,848,0007T & 3 1426,0005% .

HK$426,000 respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for staff quarter.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing Z®¥IEFIF4NAFETE) :
activities:
Loans from
Bank Bonds issued fellow
borrowings and and acerued subsidiaries and
accrued interest interest Lease accrued interest
RATERE RITRFR liabilities i & FA &
KRB KRR ARAR REANMAN
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'060 HKS$'000
BHTT BHTE BTFT BHTR
At 1 January 2018 20184518518 8,461,634 1,807,358 7,953,525
Changes from financing ¥ iLZIF A T4
cash flows EAES) 2,520,992 3,330,828 4,150,850
Interest expense FLR%H 183,305 116,504 278 877
Interest paid classified as
operating cash flow BEWESN TR (  180916) (82,191 . ( 139201)
At 31 December 2018 (as 20184E12H31H (f1
originally presented) BATIEHD 10,985,015 5,172,499 - 12,244,091
Effect of adoption of
HKFRS16 SRFIHKFRS 1689850 - 63,712 -
At 1 Janavary 2019 (as  20194F1H18 (8
restated) Ei:9) 10,985,015 5,172,499 63,712 12,244,091
New leases IS - - 7,848 .
Disposals of leases ABERE : . ( 426)
Changes from financing & HshP= 4 K&
cash flows WEASED 2,516,202 = { 32,283) 2,222,700
Exchange difference on
bond issued RATRIFHIC L% . ( 105,239) . ;
Tnterest expense FIEZe R 327,971 232,967 2,116 429,543
Interest paid classified as
operating cash flow SEEEHEARRE ( 327,434) ( 226921) ( 2,116) (430207
At 31 December 2019 20194£12831H 13,501,754 5,073,306 38,851 14,466,127
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FEREARAFTRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y SRR R
31 December 2019

20194E 12 A 31 H

22. OPERATING LEASE 22. BEHFERE
COMMITMENTS

The Company leases offices under non-cancellable Zx2\ 7 ST AR HAEHE SR, M

operating lease agreements. The leases have varying 4% HAy A28 B 46 &K
terms.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had future #% 20184E 12 4 31 H, AAFATHSEE

aggregate minimum lease payments under non- MENSEHE S MmO T .
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2018
HKS$'000
BHTT

Within one year —EZ R 31,730
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ZERF (FRE) 34,462

66,192

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the present value of FH (FHM&REHAD F 16 255, k¥
future minimum lease payments, which are no {55 A R BRI B A N E RS =, T

longer disclosed as commitments as shown above, FEW R ENRE R TIE. hREaY
is recognised as right-of-use assets. The FHATER,

comparative information has not been restated.
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FERERREARAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M EBRBIR
31 December 2019

2009412 A 31 H

23. COMMITMENTS 23, K
The Company had the following capital ZAFH AT EHAKL:
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'600
EBETT ERTG
Contracted, but not provided for, capital D& iT{EAEETERTUALHETER
confributions payable to financial  HAFZhH A\ 2 HIHE S -SRI R A W A
assets at fair value through profit or loss i g3 154,599 161,564
24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24, EEArH
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in &M ZIR FH LM B HW BB B, REER
these financial statements, the Company had the AFEHT T A FEBEH 5

following transactions with related parties during
the vear:

()  Transactions with the parent company and
the other companies controlled by the parent

) SHaFMBLFEMAMARMNE
5

company
2019 2018
HEKS$'000 HES$'000
BHT -
Interest income from: FLEW A
Immediate holding company HERERAT 3,932 7,456
A joint venture EEAa 89 216
A fellow subsidiary CEE e 3,572 10,056
Subsidiaries FAA 303,360 153,633
Management fee received from (note BFHEBBA (FEF Q) .
(a):
A joint venture EE A 48 48
Interest expense paid to; FBFEH:
Fellow subsidiaries FEFAT { 429,543) ( 278,877)
Subsidiaries Faq ( 40.969) { 31,985)
Operating lease rental paid to: SERRIHITE:
A fellow subsidiary (note (b)) RETFLE GERD) ( 31,807 ( 30,068)
Building management fee paid to: Yk E R R AT
A subsidiary (note {c)) FAE (GEFC) { 4,585 { 4,185)

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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HREAREARAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MEREER

31 December 2019

2009412 A 31 H

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24, 3EEAE (&)
(continued)

Notes: R

(8)  Management fee are received from a joint (a) A E AU NNBER . DERMEHY ¥
venture for the provision of tax filing, record REBHMEEY, X HERAXN
keeping and other supporting services. The BivhsE.
charges are based on terms as mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

(b)  Operating lease rental is paid to a fellow (b)) ZEBRFRALATAREEFATHA
subsidiary for the office space rental. The DAZFIMNRE. ZHEHHAHXN
rental is based on terms of two 3-year lease AT MR 4 BT 202048 6 B 15
agreements ending 15 June 2020 and 30 June A% 202148 6 A 30 DB =4 19718
2021 respectively as which mutually agreed N -
between the relevant parties. BRI AL .

(c) Building management fees are paid to a (c) Yk & BB AT S F A R #E BT
subsidiary in respect of the management fee HhAZSHEERBA. 2R e
incurred in the office space. The fees are TR
based on terms as mutually agreed between
the relevant parties.
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PEREARHHRAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERETE

31 December 2019
20194E 12 A 31 H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

24, 24.

The Company has given financial undertakings to
certain loss-making subsidiaries where the
Company will not demand immediate repayment of
loans and receivables from these subsidiaries in
order to maintain them as a going concern.

(i) Transactions with the government ()
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other

state controlled entities

The State Council of the PRC government
directly and indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
State-controlled entities. The Company
enters into extensive banking transactions
with these entities in the normal course of
business on commercial terms.

Transactions conducted with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
State-controlled entities include purchase
and redemption of investment securities
issued by government agencies, underwriting
and distribution of Treasury bonds issued by
government agencies through the Group’s
branch  network, foreign  exchange
transactions and derivative transactions,
lending, provision of credit and guarantess
and deposit placing and taking.
Compensation of key management personnel (i)
of the Company

(iii)

Key management personnel are those
persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company, directly or
indirectly, and the directors of the Company.
Details are as follows:
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PREARKRRAR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&R
31 December 2019

2009412 31 H

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24, LBSEE (4)
(continued)
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
WM HETT
Fees %A x
Other emoluments HARE S 10,815 21,931
Pension scheme contributions B4R ARtk 201 997
11,016 22,928
25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 25. &I Rk5

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of #iZ AR 45 B F5 /4N 4 Bh T 2L 3 51l 9 WK ] 4 35
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting FIRINF :

period are as follows:

2019
Financial assets

Loans to and receivables from

subsidiaries
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits,

accounts and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

[rd

01

o

4

BRI 74 R B

A2 fedir R it B H H AR
THA IR 88 SR Bt
Fz

A T NS B A R ik
W, P& MBTHIAH
R SR =

RERMB &MY
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B

Financial assets
measured at
amortised cost
bR RA TR
H1emhar
HK$'000
P

6,975,544

42412

5,205,211

12,223,167

FEEHREARAR

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Bl et H s
A S A RS B
HK$'000
BRTT

21,021,056

21,021,056
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FREFRBFRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MERBEER
31 December 2019
2019% 12 A 31 H
25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 25, SMTHRH
CATEGORY (continued)
2019 (continued) 2019 (&)
Financial liabilities LE R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
CANE S Rl IR 0 el A
HKS$'000
BETT
Financial liabilities included in A0 70 L o ] A TR B
other payables and accruals b &R fa i 454,678
Interest-bearing bank and other B AMRAT IS SR Hibfs ek
borrowings 27,786,757
Amounts due to subsidiaries {4 T BRI 21,794,743
Lease liabilities MR H% 38,851
Bonds issued RiTH#% 5,002,871
55,077,900
2018 2018
Financial assets ST
Financial assets at fair
Financial assets  value through profit or
measured at loss
amortised cost  BAAAHHETHR H K AP
DIt AHRNE St ALNRRS S
R B
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
W 3
Loans to and receivables from
subsidiaries B4 B R R 2k IR 7,082,585 -
Financial assets at fair value LA B2 B R A
through profit or loss LA AR Y SR 22,982,070
Financial assets included in A R U B A R i 2 T,
prepayments, deposits, WG B AT SR BF -Rh %
accounts and other receivables iz 46,575
Cash and cash equivalents WEMB e 2,835,307
9,964 467 22,982,070
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FREARFFRAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MERBEEE
31 December 2019

20194 12 B 31 H

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 25. &RITERH (&
CATEGORY (continued)
2018 (continued) 2018 (&)
Financial liabilities LeBhfh
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
O 9% Ty (I et
HKS$'000
b3 v
Financial ligbilities included in =~ @& & KRR B T %
other payables and accruals Rt 471,582
Interest-bearing bank and other TR RRIT SR R H ARk
borrowings 23,047,855
Amounts due to subsidiaries B A4 B ERTR 18,274,206
Bonds issued RiTH%E 5,100,142
46,893,785
26. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 26. SMTRPARMERARNMEEE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of listed equity investments are
based on quoted market prices. For certain unlisted
debt and equity investments, management obtains
valuation quotations from counterparties or uses
valuation techniques to determine the fair value,
including discounted cash flow analysis, adjusted
net asset value and market comparison approach,
etc. The fair value of these financial instruments
may be based on unobservable inputs which may
have significant impact on the valuation of these
financial instruments, and therefore, these assets
and liabilities have been classified by the Group as
Level 3. The unobservable inputs which may have
impact on the valuation include weighted average
cost of capital ("WACC"), liquidity discount, price
to book ratio, etc. As at 31 December 2019, fair
value changes resulting from changes in the
unobservable inputs were not significant.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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W BT R
31 December 2019

20194 12 A 31H

26.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

26.

EMTARARRERARNEEE

€

Below is 2 summary of a significant unobservable % 20194 12 4 31 HAI 20184E 12 A 31 HIY

inputs to the valuation of financial instruments
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as

at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

Significant
Yaluation technique unobservable input
fEERAR BEXFIRRSH
Adjusted net asset value Liquidity discount
SEBHESRE FEHEH
Discounted cash flow Liquidity discount

method WS AT

BE&miTE

Minority discount

)

WACC

pillk S Y
Market compatison Liquidity discount
Lipzil s W

Market muitiples

ik
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Percentage or ratio
range

HoaR bR
2019: 10% - 20%
(2018: 10% - 20%)

2019: 10% - 15%
{2018: 10% - 15%)

2019: 10% - 20%
(2018: 15% - 20%)

2019: 10.7% - 12.3%
(2018: 8.5% - 10.3%)

2019: 15% - 30%
(2018: 30%)

2019: 0.56 - 16.76
(2018: 0.73)

SR TAGERANEXTTUES Y R EE
PEREMCALT:

245

Sensitivity of the input {o fair value

10% (2018: 10%) increase in discount rate would
result in decrease in fair value by HK$5,755,000
(2018:HK $6,338,000).

10% (2018: 10%) HIMEWIRELIHA R
i 15 % /> 8 T 5,755,000 70 (2018 HH
6,338,000

10% (2018: 10%) increase in discount rate would
result in decrease in fair value by
HK$122,396,000 (2018: HK5210,248,000)

10% (2018: 10%) HMEMIELEHLR
18 Wk 2> 3 1 122,396,000 75 (2018: ¥
210,248,0007%)

10% (2018: 10%)} increase in discount rate wounld
result in decrease in fair value by
HKS$170,486,000 (2018: HK$313,184,000)

10% (2018: 10%) FHERBELETH A
% 2 Bk T 170,486,000 5 (2018 # M
313,184,0007C)

10% (2018: 10%) increase in WACC would
result in decrease in fair value by
HK$1,715,630,000 (2018: HKS$3,642,031,000)

10% (2018: 10%) AOAR L8 A R A1 1E
LRUAARAELTEMERL BT
1,715,630,000 7L  (2018: ¥#5703,642,031,000
)

10% (2018: 10%) increase in discount rate would
result in  decrease in fair value by
HK$112,438,000 (2018: HK$22,290,000)

10% (2018: 10%) HLEMIFLESH L/
Hr 18 W% 2 ¥ 1T 112,438,0007C (2018: M
22,290,0007%)

Increase in market multiples by 10% (2018:
10%) would result In increase in fair value by
HKS$316,422,000 (2018: HK$5,201,000)

10% (2018: 10%> WiHHFHEBESIHL
Fa it EIRINME T 316,422,000 (2018 HEff
5,201,00070)
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FERRERERRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W SRR
31 December 2019

201912 A31H

26. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

26. SMTRHARMERARMEES
(&)

The following table illustrates the fair valve Z/F&BITAMA RMHEHBESRS I T
measurement hierarchy of the Company’s financial #p7f,

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2018

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BEE20194E12 531 H

UanEitERER
BENTT A LRI 2
HI&RbE

BRE20184E12 531 H

CAA S iMEHH B HH
Az N
B Bl

A O B
Fair value measurement asing
2AnprETHRFEH
Significant
Significant unobservable
Quoted prices observable inputs
in active inputs (Level 3)
markets (Level2) EXRTH
(Level ) EXTHERS B2
T HRM 8 (B=F Total
(F—B&) (B=B#&) -3 Bit
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000

I BETR #WHTx BRTR

601 - 21,020,455 21,021,056

642 - 22,981,428 22982,070

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash &8 B 44 51A RIREEREZNhY, 585
and cash equivalents, financial assets included in the ¢ gy & H A it IR IR ., # 4 E WA Smh
prepayments, deposits, accounts and other receivables, MISRERE, NRTFARRKERE, 04
loans to and receivables from subsidiaries, financial EH ’ﬁi’.& o :%Uﬁ FH S E R ﬁﬁﬂ;ﬁi ##,

liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, bonds

R MSITEREHMER, RITHS I

issued and amounts due to subsidiaries approximate to T AR R A SAE S TR EARE .

their carrying amounts.
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PREABHFTRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WM EREER
31 December 2019

20095 125 31 H

26. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 26. SMTANARMERARMEES
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL ()
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value SBBEF~=HABRERREE—BERNE —BH >
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ERA RN EIFERS, TE&REEHAaE
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial AEE=ES% (2018 4. TR EBE=R

assets and financial liabilities (2018: Nil transferred ﬂ ) jgﬁzﬁ,&ﬁmﬁﬁ_ig = Eéj E{Jﬁijﬂ%
into Level 3). The movements in fair value e U:T‘ n -
P :

measurement within Level 3 during the year were as

follows:

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHTR i

Financial assets at fair value through profit L\ fafi{i it & H K355,

or loss; TTASHRE M &R

7=

At 1 January FEHRE 22,981,428 24,189,442
Total loss recognised in profit or loss HAREER ST TR ( 210,964) ( 1,506,088)
Additions EPN 102 437,140
Disposal FH ( 1,750,111) ( 139,066)
At 31 December FRRM 21,020,455 22,981,428
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20019412 F 318

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
price risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the
Company’s financial performance.

27.

Risk management is carried out by the risk
management and compliance division under
policies approved by the board of directors. The risk
management and compliance division identifies,
evaluates and monitors financial risks in close co-
operation with the Company’s operating units. The
board provides guidelines for overall risk
management, covering specific areas including
market risk, price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The risk management and compliance division
reports to the management on a timely basis in order
to mitigate risk exposures.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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27.

@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Market risk

(a)

Currency risk

The Company operates mainly in
Hong Kong and in Mainland China
and is exposed to currency risk arises
from wvarious currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the
Renminbi and United States Dollar.
Currency risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The
principal objective of currency risk
management is to monitor net foreign
exchange gains/losses. The Company
ensures that the net exposure is
minimised by closely monitoring the
fluctuation of the currencies, The
Company analyses the sensitivity of
the fluctuation of each currency on its
profit and loss and equity on a
monthly basis. The Company has
certain investments denominated in
foreign currency, whose net assets are
exposed to foreign  currency
translation risk.

Currency exposure arising from these
investments is managed primarily
through borrowings denominated in
the United States Dollar. Since the
Hong Kong Dollar is pegged to the
United States Dollar, the Company’s
exposure to foreign currency risk in
respect of the bank balances
denominated in United States Doilars
is considered to be minimal.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27, 4&RAKRSEIIRAERE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued) G TWEHRE (&)
(@)  Currency risk (continued) (@ TCEXE (8
The following table demonstrates the TRIR TEHEREHR, AARR
sensitivity at the end of the reporting BIRE (ZHBHEEEAAEAR
period to a reasonably possible change MMEZSIBW) RAATRERL
in the Renmi};bi exc‘lilange rate, \fvith AR H R A A 2t
all other variables held constant, of the . E=ns )
Company’s profit before tax (due to (& B U A SR &
changes in the fair value of monetary ﬂﬁfﬂiiﬁﬂjﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁii
assets and liabilities) and the HISMICH 28 /8RR X FARM
Company’s equity (foreign exchange TR B — & 22T BT R 9454k R 8
gains/losses on  firamsaction of B, HAtSEREREE,
Renminbi  denominated  equity
securities classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss).
Increase/(decrease) in  Increase/{decrease) Increase/(decrease)
exchange rate  in profit before tax in equity*
% HKS$ million HKS$ million
b 3 BarAlE ek
Wn/aRA) W hn/oR2P) B/ D)
% EPEAT BHEAT
2019
If the Hong Kong dollar
weakens against the WRATHART
Renminbi e 32| 10 13 1,517
If the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against the MREBHH AR
Renminbi ILEHE {10 (13) (1,517)
2018
If the Hong Kong doliar
weakens against the MRBEDH AR
Renminbi CEEE 10 13 1,541
If the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against the MR TR AR
Renminbi CHETHE 10) (13) (1,541)
* excluding retained profits
* AR ITFIH
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  27. £BREREHEBSABCE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
{continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued) O HERE (&)
(b)  Price risk b) S
The Company is currently holding A2 6] B A GRS K
quoted securitics for medium and long WO AE R KRR S R AR
exposed o prce lstunion, Pice ot o S
. feian Py t i
is controlled by and independently ;fg;%%ﬂﬁggﬁéﬁfgki
supervised by Risk Management and i Rfer =
Compliance Division. The overall 2w BRI DA Y T o 2 ) R A
comprehensive risk control 852 MK .
mechanism aims at minimising
Company’s market risk exposure to a
manageable and acceptable level.
The Company monitors its long-term AAFEIBEENBREEEEEX
quoted investme_nts through stl_'ict BHAEERERBEELERMEK
Erooess 10" Gaal ens xecution, The VU, EERTASASR L
- AN TP >
fair value of financial instruments gg Egg% igg%gf‘gg%g
traded in active markets (such as - 2
financial assets at fair value through ) E—‘Lﬁﬂj%?ﬁmm%ﬁﬁi" il
profit or loss) is based on quoted MO BB M A R ER TR
market prices. The fair values of ME. BE 20094128310, &
quoted investments are based on RLETREME 5 MBS SHEBE
quoted market prices. At31 December Az, Hext EiTEAEE A Rt
201_9, a 5 percentage variance in listed WP~ 3 T TCHIBm (2018 4F
e ke s a2 12 A 31 H: % 3778 « %T
financial assets at fair value through ﬁﬂ‘?‘j ?’.M@Eﬁuﬂ‘ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂ
profit or loss listed equity positions by HEFA é %ijﬁ‘ﬁmﬁﬁiﬁfz ’
HK$0.03 million (31 December 2018: PR AR BR.
HK$0.03 million). For those financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss considered impaired, the impact
would be taken to the statement of
profit or loss.
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27.

@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

©

Price risk {continued)

If the market for a financial asset is not
active (e.g. for unlisted securities), the
Company established fair value by
using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length
fransactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis
and net asset value model, making
maximum use of market inputs and
relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs. Some selected
investments will be valued quarterly
and all investments will be valued
each year. All valuation results are
compared with the existing
investment amounts and discrepancies
will be calculated and checked with
the investment provisions so as to
make sure the overall provision is
maintained at an appropriate level.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risks
of change in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Company’s
loans to and receivable from
subsidiaries, short-term borrowings
from fellow subsidiaries and banks as
detailed in note 17 to the financial
statements. Loans to and receivables
from subsidiaries and borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the
Company to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Loans to and receivable from
subsidiaries and borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Company to fair
value intersst-rate risk,

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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27,

@

2019

Increase in interest rate
Decrease in interest rate

2018

Increase in interest rate
Decrease in interest rate

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
{continued)

Market risk (continued)

(©)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other

variables held constant, of the
Company’s profit before tax (through
the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

g

FE o

ELi: i bl

FHEpk >

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

27. SWRREHEFFENERE (8

() TWHERAE (&)

()

GIE SN e

TRIGR T ALTABARE GEL
XS RE R E IR A%
TR R H— A AT R AR E) Y
BB, RfSHREFRE.

(Decrease)/increase

in profit before tax

HK$'000

BaRAE

Basis point R/ m
ER T
25 ( 57477

25 57477
25 ( 44,124)

25 44,124
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27.

(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
{continued)

Credit risk

The Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to loans and advances to its
investee companies, the undertakings given
to those investee companies and deposits
with banks and financial institutions.
Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to the credit risk are monitored
on an ongoing basis. Risk management and
compliance division assess as the credit
quality of the investee companies on a case-
by-case basis taking into account of its
financial position, past experience and other
factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
limits and approval by the investment
committee and board of directors. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Company’s loans and receivables are mainly
to joint ventures, associates and subsidiaries
and the Company considers that credit risk to
loans and receivables to be minimal.

The Company also considers that credit risk
attributable to the deposits with banks and
financial institutions are minimal as these
banks and financial insitutions’ eredit rating
ranging from Aa3 to A3 from Moody’s as at
31 December 2019.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of the
financial assets in the statement of financial
position.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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27.

(iii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company
may not be able to generate sufficient cash
resources to settle its obligations in full as
they fall due or can only do so on terms that
are materially disadvantageous.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities. Where necessary, the Company
would obtain funding from its immediate
holding company or fellow subsidiaries. The
Company’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had
unutilised unsecured committed revolving
credit facilities of HK$13,284 million (2018:
HK$12,001 million). As at 31 December
2018, the Company also had unutilised
approved bonds quota in Shanghai Stock
Exchange and National Association of
Financial Market Institutional Investors of
HK$13,061 million.
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27.

(iii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Company’s

financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual

27.

MR EE HIRARE ()

(i) WEMMERE (&)

EAMEMK, £AAETERARTU
AR St R B H F R T

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Other payables and accruals

Hib SR TR R
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
T B ERAT R R A R

Amounts due fo subsidiaries

FEAYF 2 Al 3R

Bonds issued

RATHE

Other payables and accruals

Forh RIS BRI R AR 27
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
TR M RAT R R Al AR

Amounts due to subsidiaries

REATF 2 F) 3R

Bonds issued

RATH S

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

2019
Less than

On demand lyear 1toS years Total
CIlE ) F 14 1E54E it
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ERTx BHTx BT BHETR
497,690 11,820 509,510
- 23,465,810 5,812,818 29,278,628
16,288,664 1,294,512 4,901,079 22,484,255
- - 1,742,283 3,636,389 5,378,672
16,288,664 27,000,295 14,362,106 57,651,065

2018

Less than

On demand lyear 1 toS5 years Total
3 DF 14 1548 Bit
HEKS$'000 HK$'600 HK$'000 HKS$'000
#ERTL BhTT BT ERTT
471,642 471,642
23,857,369 23,857,369
16,925,926 1,383,589 18,309,515
- 5,719,992 5,719,992
16,925,926 25,712,600 5,719,992 48,358,518
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27.

(iv)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
{continued)

Capital management

The Company’s objectives in managing
capital are to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholder and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholder,
return capital to shareholder or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Company monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
liabilities divided by total capital (i.e.
adjusted liabilities plus total equity). The
adjusted liabilities equals to total liabilities
stated in the statement of financial position,
excluding tax payables and amounts due to
subsidiaries. Total equity equals total equity
stated in the statement of financial position.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

Adjusted liabilities ZRE M
Total equity fRAEB ST
Total capital BB
Gearing ratio gl R g o

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 28, FAR#R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: |,
(a)  Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the (a)
ordinary shares in which are held by the

Company as follows:

Percentage of equity
Foandadii
Directly held by the Directly held by
Company (and/or its subsidiary(and/

Name of the Company nominee)  or its nominee) Company’s
AT LR BAF FAH effective
(in alphabetical order) GUBHAEN) F/EHARAA) holding
RN EERH HERA R
Asia Success Investments Limited 100% 100%
BEBEFRAR
Asia Wish Limited 100% 100%
KEHHAE
Asian Dynamic Limited 100% 106%
AT IR 7
Best Value Limited 100% - 100%
FERBRAH
BOC China Fund Limited 100% 100%
TRFEESEFRAA
Capital Famous Limited 100% 100%
BHARAR
Capital Intemational Limited 100% 100%
S E R R A H
Champion Charm Holdings Limited 100% 100%
BRERARAR
Changxing Software Company Limited 100% 100%
TEGERGTRAF
China Grace Limited 100% - 100%
AHARAF
China Harvest Limited 100% 100%
FEER R AR
China Wise International Limited 100% 100%
EHERFFRAH
Dynamic Way Limited 100% 100%
HEEFRAR
East Gain Limited 100% 100%
ERERAW
Essential Development Limited 100% 100%
AR RAR
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BEARE MR, FERBERTFLAIRW

THBIEMATAAFEWT, F4F
FA 2B A

Principal activities

EEVE

Investment holding
AT
Investment holding
TELHE
Investment holding
#H AT
Investment holding
HEAT
Inactive

JEEER

Investment holding
BEAF
Investment holding
HEAT
Investment holding
wELA
Investment holding
HHEALF
Investment holding
HEAT
Investment holding
Er 47 A
Investment holding
£ 47 P
Investment holding
BHEAHF
Investment holding
HEALAF
Investment holding
BRUAF
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20194612 H 31 H

28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES  28. FARWNER (&)
(continued)

(@)  Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the (a) F&HFEEMMFATEE
ordinary shares in which are held by the HEBNEERER: (5
Company as follows: (continued)

Percentage of equity
g
Directly held by the Directly held by
Company (and/or subsidiary (and/or

WF, AAH

Name of the Company its nominee) its nominee) Company’s
PACE BAT FAR  effective
(in alphabetical order) EERREA)  (RERMFEAN) holding Principal activities
QEIEFNT) HERH ERST #BEH ERVE
Kingster Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
BERRAR HENT
Modern Honour Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
BEAERA BREAH
Sinosun Industrial Limited . 100% 100% Investment holding
FRETWHRAA BEAT
Smart Treasure Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
WEEARAR 547 R/AE
Star Alpha Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
EFHMAT gE oA
Success Prospect Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
HIERRAR 3'a g N
Sun Chung Asset Management Limited 100% . 100% Investment holding
P REEEFRAA BHAF
Sun Chung Property Management - 100% 100% Property management
Company Limited service and investment
Bk EEARAR Wb R AT B
Top Sharp Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
FHARAR BN
Treasure Star Investments Limited . 100% 100% Investment holding
B RE MR AT REAR
Union Growth Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
FHAFRAT BEAF
United Field Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
IR RA BHEAF]
Union Wealth Investments Limited 100% 100% Investment holding
HERBERRA BEAFE
Victory Score Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
BFEFBAF BEAH
Vision Focus Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
G EHRAT #/HEATE
Wellink Investments Limited 100% 5 100% Investment holding
ERTAHIRAR WHENT
Winfull Properties Limited 100% . 100% Investment holding
CEELARAH HHE AT
Win Season Limited 100% - 100% Investment holding
AITHRAR #EAH
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28.
(continued)

(b)  Subsidiaries incorporated in the British (b)

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Virgin Islands, the ordinary shares in which
are held by the Company as follows;

Name of the Company

ATERK

(in alphabetical order)
ERZCFRN)

Acefair Holdings Corp.

Alwin Enterprises Corp.

Aston Assets Holding Litd.

Bestmind Assets Management Limited
EEREEFRART

Billion Crown Investments Litd.
Cultural Developments Limited
Delight Sky Limited

EARAERAR

Express Glory Enterprises Ltd.

Gabo Holdings Inc.

Gold Vision Enterprises Ltd.
Goldway Financial Corp.

Goldway Investment Holdings Corp.
Lucky Star International Holdings Inc.

Maxi Joy Investments Ltd.

Metrowin Holdings Inc.

28.

TFATR/R (£

TRBYRERESEMN T ARG S

T AARFEHAEERM.

Percentage of equity
Eraidzf )

Directly held by
the Company
(and/ or its
nominee)
HAH
(BBFAEN)
EENA

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
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Directly held by
subsidiary {(and/
or its nominee)
FAT
(BBRAREN)
HENA

100%

FEETRRRRAR

Company’s
effective
holding

i 426,

100%

100%

100%

100%

160%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

EEVE

Investment holding
BEATE
Investment holding
BEAA
Investment holding
BE LT
Investment holding
BHAF
Investment holding
HHARH
Investment holding
"EALAT
Investment holding
HBEAT
Investment holding
BHEAH
Investment holding
w/HEAT
Investment holding
LT
Investment holding
BHEAT
Investment holding
#HEAE
Investment holding
BEAH
Investment holding
WHAH
Investment holding
HEAF
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28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 28, FATFMWNMR (&)
(continued)
{b}  Subsidiaries incorporated in the British (b) FRBLHERNHBHSEMEYTLATLEM
Virgin Islands, the ordinary shares in which T, EABREEHNETERK. 4
are held by the Company as follows:
(continued)
Percentage of equity
s
Directly held by the Directly held by
Company (and/or its  subsidiary(and/or
Name of the Company nominee) its nominee)
é\\ ﬂ ﬁé\\'ﬁ ?é}ﬂ Company’s
(in alphabetical order) (BRAREA)  (RBIURHLA) effective holding  Principal activities
ESUCF ) EENE HEEBRHE BHREH ERIE
Polima Corp. 100% 100%  Investment holding
RHEAH
Power Big Holdings Limited 100% 106%  Investment holding
BAHBREFRAA BB AF
Power Essence Investments Ltd. 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEAF
Shining Beams Investments Ltd, 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BEAT
Star Team Enterprises Inc, - 100% 100%  Investment holding
BT
Sunny Dragen Investments 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited R
TERES R AR A A
Top Leader Finance Ltd. 100% 100%  Investment holding
SR &4 RA T 3 A ]
Topmark Assets Ltd. 106% 100%  Investment holding
®wHEAT
Top Rank Management Ltd. - 100% 100%  Investment holding
4 Nl
Treasure Ascent Investments Ltd. 100% 100%  Investment holding
587 A
Victory Luck Investments 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited AT
MR BB R AR
Will Rich Investments Limited - 100% 100%  Investment holding
FBHRBRHEFRARD BEAA
Million Success Enterprises 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Corp. HHAF
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28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

{continued)

(c)  Subsidiaries established in the PRC, with (c)

equity held by the Company are as follows:

Name of the Company

AR HH

JEHEAAEARAR

THREFFRAA
HIERIEFRAH
HEI DL A RAE

TERAIETCRE B AR AR
HREARERGRAR

FEA R BRI B A BB PR )
T CGelD BEEEARAR
FEHA PR A B A PR )
FEWTHEQRBEFRAR

FEH I RS AT
BRFE R (R HRAF

28, TAFER (&)

NRVRAR BB
Percentage of equity
Euidq)
Directly held by
the Company Directly held by
(and/orits  subsidiary{and/or
nominee) its nominee) Company’s
ﬁﬁﬁ ?é} Ll effective
FBIAEN) GEHAREN) holding
EERH HENY 26
- 100% 100%
100% 100%
52.7% 47.3% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
25% 85%
100% 100%
- 100% 100%
100% 100%

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
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FTHREABEMBTARGERLT, &

Principal activities

EEN%

Leasing service of office

and apartment
HFRRAEHER
Investment holding
BHAT

Hotel Services
HERE

Hotel services
BIERS
Investment holding
BEAF
Financial asset
management
HrEEE
Investment holding
BEAA
Investment holding
BEAF
Investment holding
BB
Investment holding
BHAT
Investment holding
fitd A
Investment holding
BB A
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28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES  28. FAFWNR (&)
{continued)
(d) Subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman (d) FHEHREMPHFATISELT. &
Islands, the ordinary shares in which are held A EE RSB
by the Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
Fiiid2d)
Directly held by the  Directly held by
Company (and/or its subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nominee)
ﬂé}ﬁ ?{f\\ﬁ Company’s
Name of the Company (BEBRREAN)  (R/BRHAHA) effective holding  Principal activities
FNLIES EEBRNH HENT iz EEVF
Sky Splendor Limited 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BHEAR
(¢)  Subsidiary incorporated in Macau, the (e) THM|IEMUFARASEMT, A8H
ordinary shares in which are held by the IR imaEe.
Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
Eu:2 424
Directly held by the  Directly held by
Company (and/or its subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its mominee)
AR FAR Company’s
Name of the Company (BBRAREN)  (BERAEN) effective holding  Principal activities
LI E S HERE EERA i3 4: A =R
HIEBEEREAERAR 75% 75%  Investment holding
BHEAH
(f)  Subsidiary incorporated in Singapore, the (f) FHMBEMWBTFATESELT, 4
ordinary shares in which are held by the R RH AT B
Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
Eugindzn il
Directly held by the  Directly held by
Company (and/or its subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nominee)
AT FAH Company’s
Name of the Company (B/ERFREN) (BB HARHEA)  effective holding Principal activities
sk HERHE HERH oz | EEWSH
BOC Aviation Limited T0% 70%  Leasing of aircraft
HRMTEHEEERAR AT R
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28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. TFARER (&)
(continued)
(g)  Subsidiary incorporated in the United States (g)
of America, the ordinary shares in which are el 28 A
held by the Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
Ean 424 ]
Directly held by the Directly held by
Company (and/or its subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nominee)
AR T4 Company’s
Name of the Company (BBIAREN) (RBSMREA) effective holding
AALH B ERRH R
TBP Owner, LLC 100% 100%
(h)  Subsidiary incorporated in Barbados, the (h)
ordinary shares in which are held by the NEIEHE R ERA
Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
fyiiid= 8]
Directly held by the  Directly held by
Company (and/or its subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nominee)
TAH FAH Company’s
Name of the Company (BBFHRBAN)  (R/BHARIEN) effective holding
AALT _ HEEH HEFT  RBEN
Exchange Realty SRL. 100% - 100%

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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TREEMOFANEELT. £A7

Principal activities

FEVE

Investment holding
B’EAHE

TEEZHEMMTARGRELT, &

Principal activities

=RV

Investment holding
KA
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29. PARTICULARS OF JOINT 29. AEMIEN
VENTURES

Particulars of the Company’s material joint AT TESEMSEREOT.
ventures are as follows:;

Place of Percentage of

Particulars of registered registration/ ownership Principal
Name of the Company capitalfissued shares held incorporation interest activities
AF4EHK EMBACRITRA A REHLH FEVS
LTEHEERSBARARAR Uss1 PRC 42% Investment
ESTAV i holding
BHEAF]
Wkland Investments TT Limited Uss2 BVI 50% Investment
XL EEEREES holding
BEAH

30. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATE 30, EREMSIER

Particulars of the Company’s material associate is 7/ 7] FEREMAVERDT.
as follow:

Place of Percentage of

Particulars of registered regisfration/ ownership Principal
Name of the Company capital/issued shares held incorporation interest activities
GIE S AR Pk R AT A b3 9 R EEEE
IARREREEREGRAR US$28,000,000 PRC 45%  Refinancing
5 71.28,000,00075 THE TR B

31. OPERATING SEGMENT 3. B4R

INFORMATION

Management reviews the performance and allocate 43 ] (Y BB N — M Efh, BHE HEER

resources on the basis of the Company as a whole RHAG AN —NBELSTREE. BT
as the Company’s resources are integrated. EENEER.

Accordingly, no operating segment information is

presented.
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31. OPERATING SEGMENT 31. SESHER
INFORMATION (continued)
{a) Revenue (a UA
2019 2018
HKS'000 HKS$'000
WHTT WA
Hong Kong & 3,244,116 3,290,340
Mainland China o E Ak 1,000,061 533,281
Macau Wi 2,386 1,893
Other countries HAth 105,959 265,112

4,352,522

4,090,626

The revenue from other sources information above L} _|- 24} & RFESEVENEML SR A#E

is based on the locations of the customers. FHBIX 45,

(b) Non-current assets (b) EREIEFE
2019
HKS$'000
- {1 o
Hong Kong i 52,176,694
Mainland China B A 7,920,584
Other countries Hith 11,416,954

71,514,232

2018
HKS$'000
BHTR

45,558,350
5,378,137

11,742,045

62,678,532

The non-current asset information above isbasedon DA |- 74x 40 7] H 4k 42 BElE BRI Bk

the locations of the assets and excludes financial XS5, AMESETAE.

instruments.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

32.

In preparing these financial statements,
management has evaluated and disclosed all
material subsequent events up to 28 April 2020,
which is the date that the financial statements were
authorised for issue. Subsequent to the end of the
financial year, the COVID-19 outbreak was
declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization in March 2020. As the outbreak of
COVID-19 occurred after 31 December 2019, its
impact is considered an event that is indicative of
conditions that arose after the reporting period, and
accordingly no adjustments have been made to the
financial statements as at 31 December 2019 for the
impacts of COVID-19.

During the first quarter of 2020, the COVID-19
outbreak has occurred which has had significant
impacts on financial markets and accordingly the
fair value of the Company’s major assets may be
negatively impacted. However, the impact of this
outbreak as at the date of issue of these financial
statements is not quantifiable due to the multiple
uncertainties involved, including factors on
indusiry, market and economy, and government
suppott programs in many countries which continue
to develop. The directors will continue to monitor
the situation and its impact on the Company.
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32, BREW

SRR, EEE DGR A
EMFHEREAH 2020 F 4 B 28 HIWE
KWRET. MEHE, HRATPEART 2020
3 ABFAERIREMAEBEREE X
WAT. FMET 20194 12 /] 31 AE, HEE
R REBENEWE T RAETREHEN
&5, 2019 4E 12 B 31 HEM SR EL T
{EHIF%.

2020 EH—FF, FHERBETAEHRE
SR HHERER, TRENAAATE
R-HARMEF A AR, B, RER
k. WHMBFENMBERAER, MREK
WHBKZFTR, LREMERERERN
B0 37 B R T A A B I MR R A AT
B, EESHFEREMRHLIFTEN AL
BB .
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

32,

In April 2020, the Company obtained unutilised
approved bond quota of RMBS billion (equivalient
to HK$8.9 billion) from National Association of
Financial Market Institutional Investors and will
expire in 2022,

Other than those disclosed above, no subsequent
events have occurred that would require adjustment
or disclosure and have a material effect on the
financial statements as at 31 December 2019.

33. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 3.3 to the financial
staetments, the Company adopted HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, the comparative
amounts in the financial statements were not
restated and continued to be reported under the
requirements of the previous standard, HKAS 17,
and related interpretations.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

24,

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
April 2020,
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32, MERPI (&)

2020 F 4 H, AARFHERTETHEEHE
PrEBRAETT AR MRS A AR 80
L (S TS 89 475), HXRBEHF
2022 4EFH.

B EREEWERS, RREHATERER
PEEEHX 20194 12 A 31 HHM SMFrEE
REM S T,

PR

FAFRTFT 201941 8 1 XA (FHHEHRE
AERD % 16 SEBITHRBWEEE, M
WEERE33. WBZHE:, EEERMSHE
P LR AR, SREERE ST (BD (FiE
STHEND 2 17 EREXER) HWERETH]
.

33.

34. WERBRAE

AMEMET 20204E 4 B 28 HEE LM E3+
FULEA.
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